### SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

### **EXECUTIVE FINANCE COMMITTEE**

# The Beach House Hilton Head Island Hilton Head Island, South Carolina

### **September 17, 2015**

### **SUMMARY MINUTES**

### **Committee Members:**

Ben Hartig, chair
Mel Bell
Dr. Michelle Duval, Vice
Jessica McCawley

# **Council Members:**

Charlie Phillips

Anna Beckwith

Chester Brewer

Chris Conklin

Dr. Pow Crobtroe

LTIG Toro Prov.

Dr. Roy Crabtree LTJG Tara Pray
Dr. Wilson Laney

### **Council Staff:**

Bob MahoodGregg WaughKim IversonAmber Von HartenRoger PuglieseDr. mike ErrigoDr. Kari MacLauchlinChip CollierDr. Brian CheuvrontJohn CarmichaelMike CollinsJulie O'Dell

### **Participants/Observers:**

Erika Burgess Dr. Jack McGovern
Dr. Bonnie Ponwith Roy Williams
Dr. George Sedberry Tony DiLernia
Monica Smit-Brunello Sean Meehan

Additional Observers Attached

The Executive Finance Committee of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council convened in the ballroom of The Beach House Hilton Head Island, September 17, 2015, and was called to order at 1:30 o'clock p.m. by Chairman Ben Hartig.

MR. HARTIG: We're going to start the Executive Finance Committee. The first item of business is approval of the agenda. Are there any changes to the agenda? Seeing none; the agenda is approved. The next item is approval of the June 2015 minutes. Are there any changes or corrections to the minutes? Seeing none; the minutes are approved. That brings us to status of the Calendar Year 2015 budget expenditures behind Attachment 1; Bob.

MR. MAHOOD: If you look at it, you will see we're pretty much on track even though we're pretty much three-quarters through the year. It is shown we're spending at about a 50 percent level to date. There are a couple of reasons for that. We have some large expenditure that have not been paid out yet from the state liaison grants and some of the other contracts we have.

Also we have been spending at a rate to try to create some carryover into next year; and if you look at the bottom line on the first column on the left and the bottom line on the column on the right, we are looking at a carryover of about \$326,000, plus or minus a little bit. I think we're in pretty good shape; and we hope to be in good shape going into the next year, Mr. Chairman.

MR. HARTIG: Questions for Bob about the budget? I don't see any; so moving along to council follow up and priorities, and I believe Mr. Waugh will be taking us there.

MR. MAHOOD: While, we're waiting for Mr. Waugh, let's skip along to the next item.

MR. HARTIG: The webinar format used in recent hearings.

MR. MAHOOD: As many of you know, this past year we've been looking at a different format for holding some of our public comment sessions and to gather public information. In the past when we've gone in the field, we've expended considerable funds in certain locations only to have a couple council members, two or three staff members, and nobody from the public show up. Then we get complaints about, well, you don't meet where we are.

We looked at a new format this year; and, of course, Amber was very much involved in this as well as the rest of the staff. We set it up to where we would have a station that people could go to in a particular area and council members would be there but yet staff would operate remotely via webinar. I think it worked pretty well. We had more participation from the public.

Some people did go there and the people that showed up at the site had the opportunity to talk one on one with the council members that were there, which was good. I think a lot of the public liked that. Other people that couldn't make it to the site were able to tune in on the webinar and have their input through the webinar. Mike did some dollars-and-cents calculations, and it looks like the average on-site public input session costs somewhere between \$1,500 and \$1,600; yet conducting it through the webinars with a site that people can go to and interact with council members ran about \$500. It is about a third cheaper overall to operate like that.

Now obviously there are some issues that are so sensitive that I think we do need to get out in the field and hold a number of hearings; but for a number of things that we do I think this is a good

way to address it. Mr. Chairman, that is kind of what we are asking, I guess, is what is the wish of the council? Should we continue with some of this or should we do it differently?

MR. HARTIG: Well, I have my views, but I'll go around the table if anybody wants to chime in, and I'm looking at Charlie first.

MR. PHILLIPS: Mr. Chairman, it seems to be working well; and as Bob says, there probably are some times when we need to try to meet face to face. I know in Georgia, meeting at those fishing clubs, Doug made sure that we've got people there and that worked very well. I think we might have a sweet spot here.

MR. BELL: Yes; I think from South Carolina's perspective we had some good results out of that and I felt comfortable working with that. Part of it was we found some good places I think, particular in Murrells Inlet, which is more of a kind of ground zero for a lot of the snapper grouper fishery and all.

That in part was taking it sort of to them, so that helped; but I mean the overall format and how we did that seemed to work. We spend a lot of time dealing with snapper grouper issues. If it is a different fishery and we need to kind of change the center of gravity in terms of the location, we can do that. But I liked it; I thought it was much more successful than the previous couple years.

MR. COX: I think the same; I think it is has worked very well. I like the format we're doing now so I would say continue.

DR. DUVAL: Yes, I thought it worked well, also. I think fishermen appreciated the more informal style of what we did; particularly when we were doing the vision comment stations. It was less intimidating I think for them to be there with us instead of also having multiple rooms and staff tables and whatnot.

I agree with Bob that there are some issues for which you definitely are just going to need to have an in-person meeting, and we also did that as well. I was unfortunately disappointed in the turnout that we had in North Carolina for one of our public meetings, the one for Regulatory Amendment 16. We had that in an area that was very close to the heart of that fishery. Sometimes you hit and sometimes you miss.

MR. HARTIG: To follow up on the Regulatory 16 thing, we used Kari to go out and interview fishermen and get some really, really great input; and that frees up a little bit of our funding I think to be able to do that in special circumstances where we need to do that. I really think that is a great benefit to that.

I think in the process of the listening stations, I really like the people from the other areas being able to chime in on the webinar and being able to interact with fishermen in other areas. I think that is critical. That doesn't happen very often, and now that is going to be a part of our process moving forward, I think. Charlie, to that?

MR. PHILLIPS: Yes, to that point, when we're listing our comments from each of these public hearings, it would be nice if we can kind of make sure we're not double-counting comments and we're doing state-by-state kind of comments and things like that. That will be helpful.

MR. HARTIG: Erika, you were at all of these that we did in Florida; do you have some observations you would like to share with the council?

MS. BURGESS: I thought the combination having staff in Charleston presenting and then having yourself there to talk, and I was there to answer questions, we were able to have law enforcement at a few meetings to answer enforcement questions; I thought it was very valuable. I would encourage the council members who maybe haven't been able to make it out yet to attend these, because the interaction is great.

As far as for the folks that are in the room listening, it would be helpful for us to know how many people are on the webinar listening and maybe where those folks are from. I think council staff has an advantage to know how many people are there, who they are, and the council members in the room may not have that same advantage.

MR. HARTIG: The only other thing I would add is that at one location in particular, maybe it was two, we had a microphone that you could hand around for people to talk into. Believe it or not, just trying to move someone from a chair to another chair to speak makes a difference. You all realize that.

If we can have a microphone that we can pass around at these things where people don't have to get up, they can stay in their chair, it works well. The one problem we had was some of the venues were too small. The one in Key West was, my gosh, it took us a half an hour to get enough chairs in there and we still never did get enough chairs for all the people that showed up, which was great. I mean they all showed up.

Of course, there will always be some glitches in the technology that we deal with from time to time and unfortunately we had that at that meeting. But, all in all, I think moving forward this is definitely the direction we should go; and that is the sense I am getting from around the table as well, lots of heads nodding.

MR. MAHOOD: Mr. Chairman as we get this kind of input, I think it will only get better. Electronic glitches will get better as we learn better how to do it and how to work it.

MR. HARTIG: And I agree. Gregg.

MR. WAUGH: Yes, one thing we noticed – and we included the Q&A session from Murrells Inlet. Sometimes you do the presentation and then you tell people, okay, we'll handle questions. Well, it is a fine line between questions and comments. Sometimes you get a great exchange; then you get to the formal comment session and there is radio silence. I think one thing we should try to do is also record the Q&A part and have that available, because I think that way we won't lose some of that input.

MR. HARTIG: Everyone who has run one of these knows what happens. Many times you get some of the best input up front and after the darned meeting in some cases, but at least at the

Q&A Gregg's got a great point. I neglected to mention that; and I mentioned it to Erika that I think we should be taping the Q&As as well, and I think we should do that moving forward. Because you are absolutely right, there are a lot of good points that come out in the Q&A and they are not captured as well in the hearing process.

MR. WAUGH: It will cost a little bit more, but I am assuming then that we would get them transcribed, too, because I think we routinely record them, but we may or may not transcribe them. I think there is a utility in having them transcribed as well.

MS. BURGESS: Ben, I think you mentioned having the microphone. Not having council staff travel to the meetings is saving some money. I would recommend that there might be a one-time purchase per state to purchase microphones or a speaker. I happened to purchase speakers for my computer to use for this purpose out of my own pocket; and they were a cheap pair for twenty bucks. If it is important enough to make sure you hear the audience, well, a microphone may be a worthwhile investment and a speaker depending on which location you're at.

MR. HARTIG: The other thing the microphone does, it focuses on that one person. That is the person who is talking and has the microphone. You know how some of these things can kind of get away from you. But overall I think as people evolve into this concept, it will get better and better. As long as they know that they can have the interaction, they can work off of what someone else said. Wait, we're going to give you the microphone, you're going to be able to talk about it; I think it will work.

MR. BROWN: Well, our last meeting that we had in Mount Pleasant, we had it at the Water Department. It worked out pretty well there, because there you could sit in your chair in the room and talk, and it went through their speaker system and everything worked well. That meeting actually worked really well. Amber said she could hear us real well and people didn't have to get up and move, and that was a good thing.

MR. BELL: That place was set up as a really nice kind of boardroom, but, yes, you find places like that. That is a good one to keep in mind.

DR. DUVAL: Again, the clarity of the discussion for both the webinar participants and for staff who are trying to hear what the folks in the room are saying really depends upon how outfitted the place is. All three of our locations had conference phones, so we had that ability. Fortunately, the number of participants we had was sufficient for that.

We had some technical difficulties at one of our sites, but that was because of an area-wide internet outage that was through no real fault of the technology. I hear what Erika is saying and you in terms of a microphone. If you're in a place that is less wired and you are thinking about a microphone, I just don't know how that is going to work with the webinar especially if you're having to plug it into your computer in order for that to be coming through the webinar. I don't know if Amber can maybe answer some of that.

She and I talked about potentially me purchasing like a little USB microphone or something that I could plug into my tablet that might help in situations where you don't have like a tripod conference phone; but I don't know how well that is going to work. I don't know how well it

would work with the webinar system. We can try it, but I'm just saying there might be some limitations to that depending on where you are.

MS. VON HARTEN: Yes; I think it just depends on the connection, if we're using a phone versus the microphone on your tablet or computer. You said you had a microphone that you passed around?

MS. BURGESS: At our meeting in Stuart we were meeting in the City Hall and they were fully wired in their public meeting room where they had speakers all around. They had a microphone that was wireless that they passed around. If you didn't realize that was what we were doing, that's great.

We did the pretest before the meeting. I didn't think we needed the microphone, because we had used my laptop for every other meeting and the rooms were small enough, and it was fine. But in the pretest with Mike, Mike couldn't hear us when we stood on the other side of the room talking, which is actually where a lot of people sat. Without that microphone, we would have had to either move the audience or move my computer, so we lucked out that time.

MS. VON HARTEN: Okay, I think it just depends on – also that room was obviously wired for that purpose. Mike and I can like look into some options and see if there are some wireless microphones that don't require amplifiers and they can be integrated. We'll look into it.

MR. BOWEN: I would just like to emphasize that we don't need - I mean we're talking about what is going on, but for Georgia we need to figure out how to get more people at these things. It's just our turnout. Yes; we have some people and they're good when they're there, and we get great comments; but it is just not enough of them, and I don't know how to reach out to any more people then what we're doing or how to go about it.

But let's just keep that in mind that the more comments - it's like the sample size. The more sample size, the more accurate we feel like the numbers will be. Well, the more sample sizes we can get from the people; the better it is going to be. I just wanted everybody to keep that in mind.

MR. HARTIG: I appreciate that; that is an age-old question that we continue to struggle with. Every year we bring it up, and Amber and Kim and everybody else who works in I&E continue to try and find innovative ways to mobilize the public to get them out to these hearings. I hope that this new way we're doing things will garner some more people to the audience, so they don't know that they're going to be put on the spot.

It is going to be much more informal and that may help. Only time will tell. I am glad Mike raised his hand, because the question I wanted to ask him was on the number of venues in Florida, they weren't in hotels, per se, that I remember, so all of these government centers, the FWC; do we have to pay for those?

MR. COLLINS: Some you do and some you don't; it just depends on the venue. The one thing that I would like to add is the one thing I was disappointed about was a lot of people texted their questions in instead of getting on the microphone and actually doing it through the microphone, particular the ones on the webinar.

I think I'll get with Kim and Amber; and maybe once we have the ones that register, we can reach out to them and offer some sort of training or something like that so we know who is registered, because some of them were reticent and they didn't feel comfortable on talking and they didn't have the microphone hooked up or whatever. There were all sorts of different things, so I think we could reach out to those. Once we have the registration, we have their e-mails, and we can reach out to them and maybe improve that.

MR. MAHOOD: That is true, but that did allow people that feel uncomfortable talking a way to get their question in.

MR. COLLINS: I think there will always be those, but I think that you lose a little bit when you don't have the two-way conversation and one of the staff members has to read what they say and then they're busy typing and that type of thing.

MR. HARTIG: I think Brian; he was the question reader for one of ours. Brian, I give him credit, he was pretty insistent; we've got some people here that need to be heard. But that is the other side of this coin that we haven't talked about. If you have a whole lot of people like we did in Key West, it makes it hard to make it work.

Somehow we need to try and actually have a schedule or something we try and stick to where at X point of the webinar this is when we're going to stop the questions locally and take some of the remote questions. I think if you can break it up like that, I think that would help.

MS. VON HARTEN: One thing back to trying to get people comfortable using the webinars; one of the thing that we had talked about doing was the council has a YouTube channel now, in case you don't know; but doing like a little video of how you register for a webinar, and then people could just watch the video on the website and know what to do. Julia Byrd actually put together this really nice, detailed kind of manual of how to register, so we do have that available.

MR. HARTIG: Great; anything else? I think you got pretty clear direction which way we're going, Bob; so that is a good thing. Now we need to circle back to Gregg on our priorities.

MR. WAUGH: What I've done – and Mike sent this around to you – I've taken what was approved and what was included with the follow-up document, our regional operation schedule and deliverables. I've updated that with actions as we discussed them here and continuing from September through December in 2015 and then starting to look in 2016.

If you remember, the idea is to get a list of any items you all would like to see us work on in 2016 at this meeting and then we prioritize those at the December meeting. In terms of our list of what we had to do; that is this top portion here. Snapper Grouper Amendment 35 is complete, so that was submitted just before this council meeting. We're on schedule. If we start on the top, Amendment 37, we have modified the timeline to where we're going to approve for public hearing in December and then do the public hearings January/February, approve and submit it in March, because that is under a statutory deadline.

Snapper Grouper Amendment 41, we're going to talk a little bit more about that when we get to Snapper Grouper in full council; but the idea was to perhaps defer approving that for public

hearing until March or June. I am going into a little bit of detail on these just so you can see what sort of the carryover from items this year is to next year before we get to our newer items.

Amendment 36, we're scheduled to approve the actions at this meeting, finish that up in December, and submit that in early January; the System Management Plan, the same thing. There will be an appendix within Amendment 36 that is a System Management Plan for Amendment 36.

The Joint Charterboat Reporting Amendment, we now have split that out as a separate amendment. The timing is roughly to approve it for public hearings at the December meeting, do the public hearings January and February, review hearing comments, approve all actions in March, final approval in June and submit in July. That will have some carryover work.

The Black Sea Bass Pot Amendment, we're scheduled to finish that up in December and submit that document in December, so that there won't be any carryover there. The FEP work will continue into next year. Amendment 36, Coastal Migratory Pelagics, we're scheduled to approve that for public hearing at the December meeting and do hearings in January and February. We'll see if we can keep on that same schedule.

The Joint South Florida Amendment, we're going to talk about that again some more in the Snapper Grouper Portion of full council; but there is some interest in pulling out of that actions to look at combining the ABC and ACL for yellowtail snapper, Gulf and South Atlantic ABCs and ACLs, and that would require us to do the AM.

When you talk about that, we're going to talk about doing that; and since yellowtail is in the majority in the South Atlantic side, we would likely be lead on that. If we were to do that, you are looking at options here. We could approve that for public hearings in December, hold the hearings and finish it up in March, depending on how fast you want to move along with that.

And like I said, we'll have some more discussions in Snapper Grouper. Then Regulatory Amendment 23, we were scheduled to approve that for public hearings in December. We've got three new regulatory amendments that were on the table for discussions at this meeting, and our guidance has been if we add those; that we defer Regulatory Amendment 23 to next year.

Doug was very slick in taking the action. He wanted out of Regulatory Amendment 23 and putting it in the blueline tile amendment or at least suggesting that. That is something we have to resolve here, just what will go in this. But we've got a blueline tilefish framework. There is an issue of changing the yellowtail snapper commercial fishing year and then possibly adding black sea bass to that.

I think realistically we would look to you to approve those items for public hearing at this meeting. We hold public hearing in November, and that would be done via webinar; final approval in December of all actions; and then finish that amendment up in March and submit in March. I just don't see how we could get all of that done by the December meeting. While the committee did not approve a dolphin framework, that is going to be discussed more in council.

If the direction is to go forward with a framework for a commercial trip limit in order to affect next year's season, we would have to finish that in December. Again, that is starting a regulatory

amendment from scratch; and Brian still has to finish up black sea bass. That is why I don't see – if we do dolphin, I don't see how we can also get blueline, yellowtail fishing year and if we add black sea bass done for final action in December. It will likely go over to March.

Then the one we haven't talked at all about yet is red snapper framework, whether you want to try to do anything to affect next year's season. Then what is on the list for next year, assuming some of those may slide over, but there was Snapper Grouper Regulatory Amendment 24 dealing with multiple species.

We've got CE-BA 3, which is bycatch; whether it stays as CE-BA 3 or whatever document that is, picking that up; a generic commercial logbook amendment, which we would probably talk about perhaps separating that as well; a snapper grouper amendment to update the wreckfish ITQ; a coral shrimp amendment to look at modifying the golden crab and to establish a rock shrimp fishing area.

Shrimp closure work; there is not a lot there; Joint South Atlantic/Gulf Amendment 24 to deal with Atlantic Spanish mackerel allocations. I guess the Gulf will be dealing with allocations as well. We were carrying this Calico Scallop FMP, but haven't heard any interest in that. But then items we moved from 2015 was an amendment to deal with short-term visioning, items from the visioning process that we want to deal with short term; then an allocation amendment coming out of the visioning.

Amendment 38 to deal with blueline tilefish; a dolphin amendment which was approximately seven actions, so that is a major amendment; presumably starting a red snapper amendment to deal with whatever comes out of the stock assessment. Needless to say, that is a lot and probably can't squeeze all of that in to the funnel for next year. It is contingent on what you decide here in terms of these additional frameworks.

DR. DUVAL: I'm a little concerned about the blueline tilefish framework, I'm sure nobody is surprised, potentially not being submitted until March mostly because even though the fishery will reopen in 2016, it will still be under that incredibly low 35,000 pound ACL, and that is going to go quickly.

If we don't have – I mean, what can be jettisoned from that? If we don't adjust the black sea bass bag limit; would that help it move along faster? In terms of the dolphin framework to implement a trip limit, my preference would be if there is something that has to be shoved off a little bit, then I think the dolphin framework could wait an extra meeting, because you're going to get the ACL increase.

And then if the trip limit is the only action that is in that dolphin framework, then presumably we could get that done in between from one meeting to the next. I would prefer to see the blueline framework approved in December so that we can get that ACL increase in there and not be dealing – I mean, my phone blows up with the discard issue.

There have already been multiple calls from fishermen wondering when would this ACL increase come in. It was my understanding that even if we approved this in December, it wouldn't get through the process until, I don't know, at least April or end of April. Maybe Roy

can speak to some of that and you can speak to some of that in terms of staff workload and how we make that work.

MR. WAUGH: When we came into this, we said we could probably deal with the blueline tilefish/dolphin and get those two done by December if we deferred Snapper Grouper Regulatory Amendment 23 to next year. It is really adding the black sea bass bag limit that makes this difficult to get all of that completed by December.

MR. HARTIG: The one thing I would say, Gregg, is don't we have an expedited process to put ABC/ACL changes in the –

MS. BECKWITH: Yes, framework.

MS. HARIG: No; don't we have a quicker framework?

MR. WAUGH: Yes, but that is only if you change the ACL and the ABC and don't change anything else.

MR. HARTIG: In blueline are we changing anything else?

MR. WAUGH: Yes, trip limits and bag limits.

MS. McCAWLEY: I was just going to say based on what I just heard, if we have to jettison the black sea bass bag limit out of the blueline tilefish/yellowtail fishing year so that it can move faster, then that might be what we have to do; put it in something else.

MR. PHILLIPS: I would be inclined to not work on this commercial trip limit for mahi and let's see what happens, because we're either going to have to do it really fast and keep everybody just nose to the grindstone and possibly drop some stuff off that we really don't want to drop off. If we don't get it done now, then it is not going to be in effect for the 2016. I would rather see what happens in 2016 and be ready to change something if necessary after that.

MS. BECKWITH: Charlie, in terms of timing for the dolphin, I actually do think it is a priority. One of the discussions that we sort of had and what we heard from the industry was out of 70 percent of the ACL doing a step-down as to not close, to assure that it is not going to close for the small boat hook-and-line fishery. I think that is a priority.

I think if we close two years in a row, it would be really unfortunate. In terms of timing, I agree with Michelle that with that extra 400 plus thousand pounds, maybe it is slightly less time-sensitive and we can push it back one meeting. I'm trying to think about the timing if we did that one in December and had it submitted in March, then approval might come in by June, Roy? Well, we have an extra 400,000 pounds coming in, right, because the new ACL would have kicked in. That is why I need some feedback from Jack and Roy, if it was submitted in March, would we be able to get that 70 percent in.

MR. BROWN: What I thought I heard was the additional 400,000 pounds would help them get through the season; since it was such a short season, that they would be able to get through the

main part of the season. We discussed working on the framework just in case something was to maximize itself next year and that we did need to go in that direction.

MR. HARTIG: I think you could use the landings now; they are probably pretty much – it has been how many months now since we haven't had any dolphin landings, Jack?

DR. McGOVERN: Dolphin closed on June 30.

MR. HARTIG: Okay, so it closed on the 30<sup>th</sup>; outstanding landings, Bonnie, from dealers? Do you expect anything out of the ordinary on that compared to probably landings in previous years? I know I'm asking you something cold. It would be nice to know that the council could look at a number and say if 400,000 pounds was added to the number that we closed it at this year, would that have worked is what I'm getting at?

DR. PONWITH: Yes, projecting that into the future is going to be pretty challenging. If you know what you want in terms of triggers in the landings that are collected, we can build those triggers in. The thing that becomes more difficult to build in is when we're missing reports. It just creates uncertainty in hitting that trigger correctly.

MR. BOWEN: I have to step in. When I hear several members of this council wanting to delay our raising of the bag limit of the sea bass, I have to voice my concern. My recreational fishermen in Georgia have suffered long enough. We're at 57 percent of the ACL. That does not need to be postponed. We need to address that situation a fast and as soon as possible to give our recreational fishermen some fish back.

MR. BREWER: I guess just further with what Anna was saying; we've had a closure of commercial dolphin for half the year this year. I think that there have been some drastic economic impacts as a result of that. Those economic impacts are not just in Florida or in our area. They are up and down the eastern coast of the United States, because that fishery is closed all the way up to Maine.

I know that there is now an additional 400,000 pounds that for whatever reason the secretary's office has not approved; don't know when they are going to approve it. They may or may not approve it in time for this next fishing year. Also, you've got to remember the economic incentive right now it is open season, baby. There is not permit requirement; it is open access.

For those guys that were bringing in 20 and 30,000 pounds at a whack; that is 80 and 120,000 at a whack. There is going to be a big incentive for a lot of folks to jump into that fishery. There is not going to be anything to constrain them. I think that we are running a very big risk if we don't put some sort of constraint in place before the beginning of the 2016 fishing year. For that reason, I agree with Anna that that needs to be looked at; and I think we need to do a framework amendment at this meeting so that it can be in place, hopefully, by 2016.

MR. HARTIG: I think one thing I've been thinking about through this whole process, when we sit down and do our priorities, you may disagree with me, but some kind of decision tree approach and how we rank these things in my eyes would be helpful. Others may not see the value in that. I don't know, just throwing it out there.

MR. BROWN: I was actually kind of thinking the same thing since I'm going to be going through that next week at the ACCSP. The only reason I brought that up is that I thought that that was what we were doing was we were trying to prioritize. One of the things I wanted to ask Gregg is about the red snapper since we are still going through the assessment.

I guess somebody brought it up that you can possibly do the ACL or change the ABC at the last minute or something. Can we make the adjustment later – can we do it later into 2016 before the start of the summer season, to go ahead and get an annual seasonal bag limit for recreational in place after the SEDAR?

MR. WAUGH: We can definitely take the ABC and your determination of ACL that comes out of the new stock assessment and implement that. But the issue we're trying to figure out how we deal with is the discards that are taking place would likely eat up the majority, if not all of that. That is what happened this year. The harvest from last year and the discard mortality exceeded the ABC.

Right now the discards and the limited harvest is killing almost the MSY. It is a bit of a box we're in with red snapper and the discards as far as opening a season. But, yes, we can implement the new ACL; and then the existing framework that we have in place could be used to determine whether there would be a season or not; and that would look at the discards for all of this year and see if that exceeded the ACL.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: To that point, I've been looking at Amendment 28 and what the council said in that amendment; and that is where you dealt with red snapper and how to set up an annual process every year; and I looked at the proposed and final rules. You implemented via a plan amendment formulas and a process that you said was going to be used each year to determine whether you're going to have a red snapper harvest.

Now if you want to change that formula and that process, I think you're going to need to do it with a plan amendment; or if you don't, then you will take the information from the SEDAR assessment, like Gregg said, but you need to plug it into the formula that you implemented in Amendment 28 and use that process.

What that means is if you want to change that, I think - I'm still looking at it with other attorneys in my office, but we think you need a plan amendment to change that formula and that process. That means a longer comment period. That means a 60-day comment period on the amendment and then a 30-day comment period on the proposed rule, so it just takes a little bit longer. That affects the speed with which you can get it in place.

MR. BELL: I was just going to say your discussion of a decision tree kind of thing; I'm looking at these as competing needs. One thing to ask yourself, I guess, is if we fail to take action on a particular thing at a particular time, is there a negative consequence. In other words, if you are kind of weighing black sea bass bag limit versus the dolphin framework issues.

I really want to see the black sea bass bag limit addressed, but is the negative consequence of not doing that greater than or equal to the negative consequence of not moving on the framework and having the fishery shut down or something. You kind of look at it that way is if you fail to take a particular action, it kind of helps.

If you prioritize towards trying to prevent something potentially bad from happening; that is one way to kind of weight the decision process, I guess. I would say that between those two, I would lean towards the dolphin framework needing to be addressed prior to the black sea bass although I really believe that needs to be done. That is how I would kind of weigh those two out.

MR. HARTIG: Yes; and everybody has got their own ideas about what their priorities are for their different jurisdictions. The thing I would do is circle back to Gregg, and, Gregg, we have all these additional items. Are we going to weigh in on this today? If we sit here at the table and just continue to talk, we could talk for the rest of the meeting about what we think should go or not.

But to get where the rubber meets the road, I think we're going to need to deal with this. To me, I think you all need to be brutally honest and go this is what we can do. These are the slots you have, just like the assessment, this is what we can do and here is the list of what you have and then plug those in.

MR. WAUGH: The priority we have from last year is shown here; that is what these numbers are; but where we need action is what to do about these new possible frameworks. It is obvious that there is a lot of interest in finishing the blueline tile by December. There is also a lot of interest including the black sea bass in that.

If indeed we are looking to defer action on the mutton amendment to where we would approve that for scoping in December and then do scoping in January and February; that frees up staff time to where we could work on the black sea bass bag limit, blueline tile and the fishing year, and could get that done by December.

These are some of the discussions we didn't get to have in snapper grouper before we got here. If you are willing to hold off on mutton, approving that; instead of us having to get that document ready for you to approve for public hearing in December, we just basically take the document that we have now, bring that back to you at December for you to approve to go out to scoping, maybe get a little bit of guidance.

Then that frees up staff time that we could put more staff time on this framework and get that done in December and still do the dolphin framework. The one sort of outlier there is red snapper for next year. That is starting from zero; it is a huge lift, and it is a whole new process. We haven't even had discussions about that yet.

MR. HARTIG: No' and I mentioned that earlier. I'm going to get to Jessica next, because I know she wants to chime in on muttons; and I haven't forgot about you, Anna. Based on what Monica said, we have a process that we're going to have to stick to even if we get the assessment results, and I don't think that makes intuitive sense to me. If that is what we have to do based on the law; that is what we'll do; but that doesn't seem to make a lot of sense to me. I don't know if we can go back on the record of when the council said what they were going to do when we got the assessment results, I don't know that we even have that; but maybe we do.

MS. McCAWLEY: One of my suggestions would be that we revisit this after we finish with the Snapper Grouper Committee; because one of the things I was going to ask for was for the mutton

document to be slowed down. I don't want to get into why right now, but that was one of the things I wanted to talk about.

I have a lot of things to say about the South Florida Amendment where that is basically going to kind of go away and that is taking up a couple slots right now. My suggestion would be if we could come back to this after we get through the rest of snapper grouper.

MR. HARTIG: I'm going to get Anna and then I am going to take your suggestion.

MS. BECKWITH: I'm good. I was going to bring up the points of Mel and have Jack sort of finish the timing explanation on if we had actually pushed the dolphin, but I am going to wait. We don't have to push dolphin forward; so we'll wait.

MR. HARTIG: Okay, I think that is a fair appraisal, because some things will change during snapper grouper and we'll get some information on some other things that will have bearing on our priorities.

MR. WAUGH: Ben, if I could answer your question about red snapper, because I think this is important for people to think about this; we have a process in place that is using the rebuilding ABCs and comparing that to the mortality last year. If the ABC was not exceeded, then there is a season. Well, that same process is what would be used with the new ABC from the stock assessment. That is in place now.

I think the point Monica was making if you want to change how you do that, to do something differently, then you would have to amend the plan; and that is why on the list we've got a snapper grouper amendment to deal with red snapper for next year. You get a new ABC; our ACL is equal to the ABC. You compare that to the mortality from this year. If there is enough left over, then there could be a short season next year. That is the process that is in place. If you want to change that, then you have to amend the plan.

DR. CRABTREE: The problem I see is we're going to get projections that come out of this assessment that are already going to account for these discards and everything; and if we then apply the process we have in Amendment 28, you get into double-counting things. I always viewed Amendment 28 as intended to just get us to the next stock assessment, but I guess that didn't get written into it somewhere.

It does seem to me that we could do an amendment relatively quickly that just removes that process in Amendment 28. I've read the idea in the briefing book about red snapper, but I don't see much future in that until we get this new assessment. I'm not sure that voluntarily asking fishermen to do things is going to really get us anywhere.

I think all this really hinges on the new assessment and getting an ABC that is enough fish that we can work with it. It does seem to me that I guess we need to come in, get rid of the process in Amendment 28, then the new assessment drives this year. Then if we need to put in some other kind of process to fill in the gaps, we can figure out what that is. But I think we've learned from Amendment 28, and I don't think we would do it exactly like that again.

MS. SMIT-BRUNELLO: I'll give you my opinion when I see the amendment that removes Amendment 28. I guess that is an option; you just need to have justification for it and all those sorts of things. That is one way to do it, I guess. That is kind of new grounds, but I'm not willing to say that wouldn't work until I saw what it looked like and the analyses in it and that sort of thing.

MR. HARTIG: Zack, you want the last word; I'm not going to go much farther.

MR. BOWEN: I completely agree with Dr. Crabtree. As bad as I want to be able to keep red snapper, I think we're putting the cart before the horse and what we've got in our briefing book can be postponed until the results of the assessment. I completely agree.

MR. HARTIG: All right, that was the last word, unless Gregg has something additional. Okay thank you, Gregg. You need to be brutally honest with us and we're getting to the point – we were pretty good for a while and then we had all these different things. The statutory things will always throw monkey wrenches into the process.

There are a number of issues that came up that blindsided us between the last two meetings; and that is difficult. All right, that was the last item I had on the agenda. Is there any other business to come before the Executive Finance Committee? Seeing none; that committee is adjourned.

(Whereupon, the meeting was adjourned at 2:30 o'clock p.m., September 17, 2015.)

Certified By: Date:	
---------------------	--

Transcribed By
Graham Transcription, Inc.
October 2015

### SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

### **2015 COMMITTEES**

### AD HOC SOUTH FLORIDA COMMITTEE (NEW)

Ben Hartig, Chair

Michelle Duval, Vice Chair

Chester Brewer

Jessica McCawley

Charlie Phillips

Staff contact: Bob Mahood and

Gregg Waugh

#### ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION

Doug Haymans, Chair

Chester Brewer

Mark Brown

Chris Conklin

**Jack Cox** 

Ben Hartig

Staff contact: Kim Iverson

### **CATCH SHARES**

Ben Hartig, Chair

Zack Bowen

Chris Conklin

Jack Cox

Doug Haymans

Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative

Staff contact:

Kari MacLauchlin / Brian Cheuvront

### **DATA COLLECTION**

Mel Bell, Chair

Mark Brown

**Iack Cox** 

Roy Crabtree

Michelle Duval

Wilson Laney

Jessica McCawley

Staff contact: Gregg Waugh

### **DOLPHIN WAHOO**

Anna Beckwith, Chair

Zack Bowen

**Chester Brewer** 

Mark Brown

**Doug Haymans** 

Mid-Atlantic Liaison, Pres Pate

Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

# HABITAT PROTECTION AND ECOSYSTEM-BASED MANAGEMENT

Doug Haymans, Chair

Anna Beckwith

Mark Brown

Chris Conklin

Michelle Duval

LTJG Tara Pray

Wilson Laney

Jessica McCawley

Charlie Phillips

Robert Beal, ASMFC Representative

Staff contact: Roger Pugliese- FEP

Chip Collier - CEBA

### **EXECUTIVE/FINANCE**

√Ben Hartig, Chair

✓Michelle Duval, Vice Chair

✓Mel Bell

✓ Jessica McCawley

✓Charlie Phillips

Staff contact: Bob Mahood

### **GOLDEN CRAB**

Ben Hartig, Vice-Chair

Chester Brewer

Jack Cox

Roy Crabtree

Jessica McCawley

Charlie Phillips

Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

### **HIGHLY MIGRATORY SPECIES**

Anna Beckwith, Acting Chair

Zack Bowen

Chester Brewer

Mark Brown

Ben Hartig

Staff contact: Brian Cheuvront

(Continued)

### SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

### **2015 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP**

#### COUNCIL CHAIR

Ben Hartig 9277 Sharon Street Hobe Sound, FL 33455 772/546-1541 (ph) mackattackben@att.net

### VICE-CHAIR

Dr. Michelle Duval NC Division of Marine Fisheries 3441 Arendell St. (PO Box 769) Morehead City, NC 28557 252/808-8011 (ph); 252/726-0254 (f) michelle.duval@ncdenr.gov

Robert E. Beal
Executive Director
Atlantic States Marine Fisheries
Commission
1050 N. Highland St., Suite 200 A-N
Arlington, VA 20001
703/842-0740 (ph); 703/842-0741 (f)
rbeal@asmfc.org

Mel Bell
S.C. Dept. of Natural Resources
Marine Resources Division
P.O. Box 12559
(217 Ft. Johnson Road)
Charleston, SC 29422-2559
843/953-9007 (ph)
843/953-9159 (fax)
bellm@dnr.sc.gov

Anna Beckwith
1907 Paulette Road
Morehead City, NC 28557
252/671-3474 (ph)
AnnaBarriosBeckwith@gmail.com

Zack Bowen
P.O. Box 30825
Savannah, GA 31410
912/398-3733 (ph)
fishzack@comcast.net

W. Chester Brewer
250 Australian Ave. South
Suite 1400
West Palm Beach, FL 33408
561/655-4777 (ph)
WCBLAW@aol.com

Mark Brown
3642 Pandora Drive
Mt. Pleasant, SC 29466
843/881-9735 (ph); 843/881-4446 (f)
capt.markbrown@comcast.net

Chris Conklin
P.O. Box 972

Murrells Inlet, SC 29576
843/543-3833
conklinsafmc@gmail.com

Jack Cox
2010 Bridges Street

Morehead City, NC 28557
252/728-9548

Dayboat1965@gmail.com

Dr. Roy Crabtree
Regional Administrator
NOAA Fisheries, Southeast Region
263 13th Avenue South
St. Petersburg, FL 33701
727/824-5301 (ph); 727/824-5320 (f)
roy.crabtree@noaa.gov

LTJG Tara Pray
U.S. Coast Guard
909 SE 1st Ave.
Miami, FL 33131
tara.c.pray@uscg.mil

### SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL.

# 2015 COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP (continued)

Doug Haymans
Coastal Resources Division
GA Dept. of Natural Resources
One Conservation Way, Suite 300
Brunswick, GA 31520-8687
912/264-7218 (ph); 912/262-2318 (f)
doughaymans@gmail.com

Deirdre Warner-Kramer
Office of Marine Conservation
OES/OMC
2201 C Street, N.W.
Department of State, Room 5806
Washington, DC 20520
202/647-3228 (ph); 202/736-7350 (f)
Warner-KramerDM@state.gov

Dr. Wilson Laney
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
South Atlantic Fisheries Coordinator
P.O. Box 33683
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617
(110 Brooks Ave
237 David Clark Laboratories,
NCSU Campus
Raleigh, NC 27695-7617)
919/515-5019 (ph)
919/515-4415 (f)
Wilson\_Laney@fws.gov

Jessica McCawley
Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission
2590 Executive Center Circle E.,
Suite 201
Tallahassee, FL 32301
850/487-0554 (ph); 850/487-4847(f)
jessica.mccawley@myfwc.com

Charles Phillips
Phillips Seafood / Sapelo Sea Farms
1418 Sapelo Avenue, N.E.
Townsend, GA 31331
912/832-4423 (ph); 912/832-6228 (f)
Ga\_capt@yahoo.com

ERIKA BURGESS

JACK MCGOVERN

BONNIE PONNIETH

ROY WILLIAMS

GEORGE SEDBERRY

TONY DILLERNIA

MONICA SMIT-BRUNELLO

SEAN MEEHAN

### SOUTH ATLANTIC FISHERY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

### **COUNCIL STAFF**

### **Executive Director**

Robert K. Mahood robert.mahood@safmc.net

### **Deputy Executive Director**

Gregg T. Waugh gregg.waugh@safmc.net

### **Public Information Officer**

Kim Iverson

kim.iverson@safmc.net

### Fishery Outreach Specialist

/ Amber Von Harten amber.vonharten@safmc.net

### Senior Fishery Biologist

Roger Pugliese roger.pugliese@safmc.net

### **Fishery Scientist**

Myra Brouwer myra.brouwer@safmc.net

### Fishery Biologist

Dr. Mike Errigo mike.errigo@safmc.net

### Fisheries Social Scientist

´Dr. Kari MacLauchlin kari.maclauchlin@safmc.net

### **Fishery Scientist**

Chip Collier Chip.Collier@safmc.net

### Staff Economist

Dr. Brian Cheuvront brian.cheuvront@safmc.net

## Science and Statistics Program Manager

John Carmichael
john.carmichael@safmc.net

### SEDAR Coordinators

Dr. Julie Neer - <u>julie.neer@safmc.net</u> Julia Byrd - <u>julia.byrd@safmc.net</u>

### **Administrative Officer**

Mike Collins
mike.collins@safmc.net

### **Financial Secretary**

Debra Buscher deb.buscher@safmc.net

## Admin. Secretary /Travel Coordinator

Cindy Chaya cindy.chaya@safmc.net

### **Purchasing & Grants**

/ Julie O'Dell julie.odell@safmc.net



# South Atlantic Fishery Management Council -September 2015 Council Meeting

Hilton Head Island, SC

Date: Thursday, September 17, 2015

Committee: Executive Finance

### PLEASE SIGN IN -

In order to have a record of your attendance at each meeting and your name included in the minutes, we ask that you sign this sheet for the meeting shown above.

		1 "	
Name:	Mailing Address/E-mail: (If your information is currently on file, please check the box.)	How do you participate in South Atlantic fisheries? (Check all that apply)	
Caretala	On File	Commercial 🗆	NGO 🖾
Gretcher Martin		Recreational 🗀	Govt. 🔲
		Charter/ For-hire	Other
		TOMME	Describe
	On File	Commercial	NGO □
		Recreational 🔲	Govt. 🔲
		Charter/ For-hire	Other
			Describe
	On File	Commercial	NGO □
		Recreational	Govt. □
		Charter/  For-hire	Other
			Describe
	On File	Commercial 🔲	NGO □
		Recreational 🔲	Govt. 🔲
		Charter/ For-hire	Other
			Describe
	On File	Commercial 🔲	NGO □
		Recreational 🔲	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/	Other
			Describe
	On File	Commercial	NGO □
		Recreational	Govt. 🗆
		Charter/	Other
		For-hire	Describe

# THURSDAY SEPT 17, 2015

Last Name First Name **Email Address** Abrams Karen karen.abrams@noaa.gov Bailey Adam adam.bailey@noaa.gov Baker Scott bakers@uncw.edu Beidemaan Terri terri.beideman@vac-usa.com **Binns** Holly hbinns@pewtrusts.org Blum Catherine catherine.blum@ncdenr.gov Bonura Vincent SailRaiser25C@aol.com kenneth.brennan@noaa.gov Brennan Ken Gilbert Brogan gbrogan@oceana.org Brouwer Myra myra.brouwer@safmc.net Julia Byrd Julia.byrd@safmc.net Clarke Lora lclarke@pewtrusts.org **DeVictor** Rick rick.devictor@noaa.gov Erwin Gwen gwen.erwin@myfwc.com Gerhart Susan susan.gerhart@noaa.gov Gore Karla karla.gore@noaa.gov Chad Hanson chanson@pewtrusts.org Helies Frank fchelies@verizon.net heymanwill@yahoo.com William Heyman Heyman William wheyman@lgl.com Hudson Rusty DSF2009@aol.com L captaindrifter@bellsouth.net Mara mara.levy@noaa.gov Levy Lindh Rvan nativetrade@bellsouth.net Martin Gretchen gbmartin71@gmail.com nikhil.mehta@noaa.gov Nikhil Mehta Meyers Steve smeyersfish@gmail.com **Phillips** Todd tphillips@oceanconservancy.org Raine Karen karen.raine@noaa.gov Reichert Marcel Reichertm@dnr.sc.gov Sedberry George george.sedberry@noaa.gov Ken Stump kstump@oceanfdn.org Swatzel Tom tom@swatzel.com Helen htakade@edf.org Takade-Heumacher dilernia anthony adilernia@kbcc.cuny.edu holiman stephen stephen.holiman@noaa.gov JACK.HOLLAND@NCDENR.GOV holland jack mershon wayne kenyonseafood@sc.rr.com roger.pugliese@safmc.net pugliese roger sandorf scott scott.sandorf@noaa.gov fan fan.tsao@noaa.gov tsao

> ean..., es re Octy

vara Herndon MacLauchlin mary Andrew Bill

mary.vara@noaa.gov Andrew.Herndon@noaa.gov

billmac@adtrends.com